
Windsor Board of Education
Regular Meeting - Hybrid via Zoom and In-person at Town Hall

Tuesday, October 19, 2021 7:00 PM
Town Hall, Council Chambers Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85191945173 Or Telephone: +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592 Webinar ID: 851 
9194 5173 

275 Broad Street
Windsor, CT 06095

1. Call to Order, Pledge to the Flag, Moment of Silence
Speaker(s): L. Lockhart

2. Recognitions/Acknowledgements
Speaker(s): L. Lockhart

3. Audience to Visitors
Speaker(s): L. Lockhart

4. Consent Agenda
Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
a. Financial Report

Speaker(s): D. Batchelder
b. Enrollment Report

Speaker(s): D. Batchelder
c. Food Service Report

Speaker(s): D. Batchelder
d. Human Resources Report

Speaker(s): D. Batchelder
5. Approval of Minutes

Speaker(s): A. Taylor
a. September 14, 2021 Policy Committee

Speaker(s): A. Taylor
b. September 21, 2021 Regular Meeting

Speaker(s): A. Taylor
6. Student Representative Report

Speaker(s): T. Falotico
7. Board of Education

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
a. President's Report

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
8. Superintendent's Report

Speaker(s): T. Hill
a.  NAEYC Accreditation Update 

Speaker(s): S. Oliver/A. Boehm
b. WHS Program of Studies 2022-2023, 1st Reading

Speaker(s): S. Oliver/D. Fudge
9. Committee Reports

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
a. Policy Committee

Speaker(s): M. Khan
10. Other Matters/Announcements/Regular BOE Meetings

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
a. BOE Organizational Meeting, Monday, November 8, 2021, 6:00 PM, Town Hall, Council Chambers

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
b. BOE Special Meeting (BOE Orientation), Monday, November 8, 2021, 6:30 PM, Town Hall, Ludlow Room

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
c. Next BOE Regular Meeting is Tuesday, November 16, 2021, 7:00 PM, Town Hall, Council Chambers

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
11. Audience to Visitors

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart
12. Adjournment

Speaker(s): L. Lockhart

1



 

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



 

 1 

Windsor Board of Education 

Policy Committee – Virtual 

Unapproved Minutes 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021 5:30 PM 

L.P. Wilson Community Center, Board Room  

601 Matianuck Avenue 

Windsor, CT 06095 
 

The following are the unapproved minutes of the Tuesday, September 14, 2021 Policy Committee - Virtual. Any additions 

or corrections will be made at a future meeting. 
 

Mr. David Furie:    Present    

Ms. Maryam Khan:    Present    

Mr. Leonard Lockhart:    Present    

Mr. James Ristas:    Present    

 
1. Call to Order, Pledge to the Flag and Moment of Silence 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM by Chair Maryam Khan with the Pledge to the Flag and Moment of 

Silence. Superintendent of Schools Dr. Terrell Hill and Assistant Superintendent for Instructional Services Dr. 

Santosha Oliver was also in attendance. 

 

2. Audience to Visitors 

 

None 

 

3. Proposed Attendance at Meeting via Electronic Communications 

 

Mr. Lockhart reviewed the guidance given by the district’s law firm, Shipman & Goodwin.  Shipman & Goodwin had 

received the basic wording of the draft bylaw, Attendance at Meeting via Electronic Communications bylaw and made 

a recommendation which was returned at the end of August.  No further guidance from them is anticipated. 

 

Mr. Furie stated that it had been discussed to limit electronics as to not include phones, but in reviewing the document, 

it seems that phone use would be permitted by board members during meetings. 

 

Mr. Ristas suggested requesting clarification of the provision that seems to require providing electronic equipment to 

the public.  He suggested informally following the provided document. 

 

Mr. Furie agreed that some areas need more clarity, including finding out if some items are statutory. 

 

Ms. Khan stated that there is terminology used that will need to be adjusted.  She reminded the committee that the 

state mandate is in place until April 30, 2022. 

 

Mr. Ristas suggested that the sunset of the bylaw should be adjusted to reflect that it would be revisited after one full 

school year of the bylaw being used after the absence of a statewide authority mandating procedures. 

 

Mr. Furie questioned if there is anything in the statute requiring transcription rather than minute-taking.  He also 

commented on the requirement for attendance, including if board members are virtual or in-person. 

 

Mr. Ristas noted that the rules for regular meetings are not the same as special and committee meetings.  He also asked 

if there is a current mask mandate for Town Hall.  It was confirmed that masks are required in all municipal buildings 

in the Town of Windsor. 

 

 

18



 

 2 

 

Mr. Lockhart stated that Ms. Khan would bring the recommendation to the full board next week.  Clarification will be 

requested from Shipman & Goodwin.   No action is anticipated at the regular board meeting.  He said that he expects 

this will be presented as a unified decision.  He suggested that if either caucus has questions to first present them to 

Ms. Khan first. 

  

4. Adjournment 

 

Motion to adjourn at 5:58 PM. This motion, made by Mr. James Ristas and seconded by Mr. David Furie, Passed. 

Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard Lockhart: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes 

 

Yes: 4, No: 0 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:58 PM. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ayana K. Taylor, Secretary 

Windsor Board of Education 

 

19



 1 

Windsor Board of Education 

Regular Meeting - Hybrid via Zoom and In-person at Town Hall 

Unapproved Minutes 
Tuesday, September 21, 2021 7:00 PM 

Town Hall, Council Chambers 

275 Broad Street 

Windsor, CT 06095 
 

The following are the unapproved minutes of the Tuesday, September 21, 2021 Regular Meeting - Hybrid via Zoom and In-

person at Town Hall. Any additions or corrections will be made at a future meeting. 
 

Mr. Brian Bosch:    Present    

Mr. Ronald Eleveld:    Present    

Mr. David Furie:    Present    

Ms. Maryam Khan:    Present    

Mr. Leonard Lockhart:    Present    

Mr. Paul Panos:    Absent    

Ms. Charlotte Ricketts:    Present    

Mr. James Ristas:    Present    

Ms. Ayana Taylor:    Present    

  

Mr. Paul Panos:    Present    

 

Mr. Panos arrived at 7:03 PM.  

 

All board members were present, in person.  

 

1. Call to Order, Pledge to the Flag and Moment of Silence 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Lockhart at 7:00 PM with the Pledge to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.  

Also in attendance were Superintendent of Schools Dr. Terrell Hill, Director of Business Services and Human 

Resources Danielle Batchelder, Director of Instructional Services Dr. Santosha Oliver, Director of Pupil and Social 

Education Services Kristina Wieckowski, and Student Representative Taylor Falotico. 

  

2. Recognitions/Acknowledgements 

 

a. Introduction of New BOE Student Representative--Taylor Falotico 

 

Windsor High School Interim Principal Breon Parker introduced the Fall 2021 Student Representative Taylor 

Falotico.  He spoke highly of her dedication to her academics, sports and community.  He said she is personable, 

kindhearted and lights up a room.  She is interested in continuing her education in the fields of women, gender and 

sexuality study. 

 

Mr. Lockhart welcomed Ms. Falotico to the board.  He stated that her voice is welcome in discussion.   

 

b. Introduction of Windsor Educator of the Year, Dr. Monica Brase 

 

Windsor High School Interim Principal Breon Parker introduced Dr. Monica Brase, the Windsor Educator of the 

Year.  He explained how she advocates for students in and out of school.  He said that she has impeccable education 

and accreditations. 

 

Dr. Brase gave an overview of her background before becoming an educator and how she was influenced to become 

an educator.  She spoke about the need for teachers to connect with their students and that she intends to be a voice for 

alternative education.  She stated that she was a semi-finalist for the State level Educator of the Year. 
20



 2 

 

Ms. Ricketts and Mr. Lockhart offered their congratulations. 

 

c. Introduction of New Administrators 

 

Ms. Batchelder introduced the following new administrators to the district: 

 

Felicia Poskus - Principal at Clover Street School 

Jennifer Michno - Principal at John F. Kennedy School 

Cynthia Romero - Assistant Principal at Poquonock School 

Kyle Wood - Assistant Principal at Oliver Ellsworth School 

Christopher Bailey - Secondary SPED Supervisor 

Dana Fudge - Director of Counseling at Windsor High School and Sage Park Middle School 

  

3. Audience to Visitors 

 

James Wong, 689 Palisado Avenue - as a high school student, demanded the removal of all political materials as they 

cause distractions in learning. 

 

Jill Canter, 689 Palisado Avenue - spoke out about a lack of communication from the district regarding busses running 

late. 

 

Gary Woodruff, 72 Tobey Avenue - appreciates the job Dr. Hill has been doing.  School is not just for facts and 

figures, but to grow into members of society. 

 

4. Consent Agenda 

 

a. Enrollment Report 

 

Move the Board of Education approve consent agenda item 4a. Enrollment Report and 4c. Approval of BOE Regular 

Meetings for 2022. This motion, made by Mr. David Furie and seconded by Mr. Paul Panos, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

b. Human Resources Report 

 

Move the Board of Education approve Consent Agenda item 4b. Human Resources Report. This motion, made by Mr. 

David Furie and seconded by Mr. Paul Panos, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

Mr. Bosch asked if there was a need for a SEL Coordinator and what was the vision of the position. 

 

Dr. Hill responded that the coordinator is at the core of the movement of the whole district to respond to the Social 

Emotional Learning needs of the students. 

 

Mr. Panos asked about the comparison of Windsor to other districts for the certified resignations. 

 

Ms. Batchelder said that Windsor is comparable to other districts and that people left for many reasons, including to 

leave the field entirely.  She also said that when there is a change in leadership, some people choose to leave. 

 

Mr. Ristas asked if there had been a memo to staff from Dr. Hill to either "shape up or leave." 

 

Dr. Hill responded that there was no such memo and that he had clearly stated his expectation that staff work harder 

and that many people leave the district for many reasons. 

 

Mr. Ristas asked Ms. Batchleder to retract her statement that there was a memo about "a new sheriff in town", to 21



 3 

which she responded that "get the memo" was a figure of speech and an actual memo never existed. 

 

Ms. Falotico said that there seems to be a common theme of working hard in a rough environment where students and 

staff didn't get as much support as they could have.  She urged the board to not look at the list of resignations and take 

it too seriously. 

 

Mr. Eleveld stated that there were quite a few retirements and that the loss of staff only accounted for about 2%, which 

is lower than in a corporate environment. 

 

Ms. Ricketts asked about separations and if they are due to the expiration of the ESSER I grant. 

 

Ms. Batchelder confirmed that some staff left at the end of the grant period but that other positions were filled due to 

the ESSER II grant.  

 

Ms. Taylor stated that it is a nationwide issue of teaching staff leaving their positions.  

  

c. Approval of BOE Regular Meetings for 2022 

 

5. Approval of Minutes 

 

a. June 15, 2021 Regular Meeting 

 

Mr. Ristas requested that an amendment be added to the June 15, 2021 Regular Meeting agenda item 8 to reflect Dr. 

Hill's response to Mr. Ristas' question about if he sought advice from Mr. Lockhart regarding staffing changes.  He 

requested the following be added after the review of the video. 

 

"Dr. Hill stated that, "I told him I am looking to make some changes.  I actually said that during my interview." 

 

Move the Board of Education approve the minutes of the June 15, 2021 7:00 PM Regular Meeting with amendment, 

pending video review. This motion, made by Ms. Ayana Taylor and seconded by Mr. David Furie, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

b. June 29, 2021 Special Meeting 

 

Move the Board of Education approve the June 29, 2021 Special Meeting. This motion, made by Ms. Ayana Taylor 

and seconded by Mr. David Furie, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

6. Student Representative Report 

 

Ms. Falotico noted that there have been a lot less COVID-19 issues this year and it should be celebrated.  She said that 

although Junior year is stressful, Senior year is insane.  Having spoken to some of the student body she said that they 

have been happy with the transition into this year and happy to have some type of normalcy.  She said that SEL brings 

more support to students and that advisory is less structured causing serious growth since last year and she suggests 

that nitty-gritty questions be asked of the students.  There has been a return of Student Government Council and 

Homecoming activities are planned. 

 

Mr. Bosch stated he was glad to have Ms. Falotico here and that she is a dynamic speaker.  He asked her what some of 

the Senior stressors are and what would help. 

 

Ms. Falotico stated that college applications and college essays are complex and that students could benefit from a 

club, summer course, or one-on-one staff time to assist in writing college entrance essays. 

 

 

 22



 4 

7. Board of Education 

 

a. President's Report 

 

Mr. Lockhart stated that over the summer he had participated in a CABE Leadership Retreat and continued to educate 

himself.  He said it had been quite awhile since the whole board had been together. 

 

b. Set Graduation Date for Class of 2022 

 

Move the Board of Education approve Monday, June 6, 2022 as the graduation date for the Class of 2022. This 

motion, made by Mr. David Furie and seconded by Mr. Paul Panos, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

c. Policy Adoption 

 

1. Proposed BL on Attendance at Meetings via Electronic Communication 

 

Ms. Khan stated that a bylaw was drafted and sent to attorney Shipman & Goodwin.  A state statute is in place until 

April 30, 2022 which the board will follow until its expiration.  Until then, Mr. Lockhart will ask for clarity regarding 

the optional items in their draft. 

 

Mr. Bosch left the meeting from 8:01 PM - 8:04 PM. 

 

Mr. Ristas said that if a sunset provision is feasible, it would be made to apply for one school year. 

 

Mr. Furie said the committee was unanimous about Mr. Ristas' point. 

 

Mr. Lockhart received general consent for the board to use the draft as guidance to the board as an operating 

document, in effect by law through April 30, 2022 and that he has been authorized to engage Shipman & Goodwin on 

behalf of the board to seek further clarity on the points stated. 

 

d. CABE Level II Distinction Award 

 

Mr. Lockhart reviewed the requirements of the CABE Level I Board of Distinction Award and how it differs from the 

Level II award.  Level I does not require board approval for its submission to CABE.  In a prior meeting, the Level II 

award had been discussed as it required all BOE members’ signatures to be submitted.  As several board members 

chose not to sign, Mr. Lockhart chose to submit the documentation to CABE for informational purposes only.  CABE 

convened for a June 16, 2021 meeting where, if Mr. Lockhart had been present at the meeting and not attended WHS 

graduation, he would have gotten a vote on the CABE agenda item allowing a majority vote to approve the Level II 

award submission by the board of education.  As it stands, the motion passed and is now being brought to the board for 

a vote to submit the collected documentation for award submission. 

 

Mr. Panos recommended not submitting, as only completing the required number of items doesn't make the board 

distinctive.  He said that there are issues with the board that are contrary to "distinctive." 

 

Mr. Lockhart suggested bringing concerns over the required items directly to CABE. 

 

Mr. Furie said he would vote in favor and said that requirements were met. 

 

Ms. Ricketts said that the board should be proud of the work they've put in and that they go above the minimum. 

 

Mr. Bosch said he would abstain.  He said he is not award driven and feels that the hurdle was not set high.  He said 

that the board can provide better examples than were presented and the submission needs work. 

 

Mr. Lockhart said that he needed to pushback on the quality of the packet and that he wished he had heard that 

argument sooner.  He corrected Mr. Bosch when it was said the board only had one day to review the material, when 

Mr. Lockhart had given them a week to review and sign. 

 23



 5 

Mr. Ristas said that the material was weak and that with policy and bylaw violations they are not a board of 

distinction.  He said he would vote in favor based on the hard work that was put into creating the submission. 

 

Ms. Taylor stated she didn't know how an award could be made into a negative thing.  She said they should pat 

themselves on the back and that she is proud. 

 

Mr. Panos asked why the vote was happening in lieu of signing. 

 

Mr. Lockhart asked if there would be general consent to accept the submission rather than everyone signing it and 

there was not consensus. 

 

Move the Board of Education approve its submission of the required criteria for the CABE Level II Distinction Award 

to be submitted by the superintendent's office. This motion, made by Mr. David Furie and seconded by Mr. Ronald 

Eleveld, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Abstain (Without Conflict), Mr. Paul Panos: No, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, 

Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard Lockhart: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana 

Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 7, No: 1, Abstain (Without Conflict): 1 

 

e. Meaning of the word Equity as used in Professional Development 

 

Mr. Lockhart began by explaining the placement of agenda item 7e, as part of the Board of Education report.  As he 

expected there to be a discussion between the board and Dr. Hill's staff, he had it placed there, not realizing that Mr. 

Panos wanted ownership of the discussion. 

 

Mr. Panos spoke at length, citing various sources and expressing his opinion that equity is counter productive. 

 

Dr. Hill noted that a monologue is not a discussion and if Mr. Panos wanted the definition of equity, as he had 

requested by email, he wanted his administrators ready to answer any questions. 

 

Mr. Lockhart requested that the question about the definition of equity be answered. 

 

WHS Assistant Principal Stephanie Lockhart read the Connecticut State Department of Education’s definition of 

equity:  "Educational Equity is the recognition that the barriers that marginalized students face are due to our actions, 

therefore requires us to dedicate a greater amount of resources to remove them." 

 

Mr. Panos said he agreed with the definition but disagrees with how it is applied in the district. 

 

Mr. Ristas said he disagreed with the definition the administration gave.  He asked the board if they are prompted to 

feel differently about the term equity.  He asked if Windsor marginalizes its students.  He then read a prepared 

document.  He quoted multiple sources and offered his opinion on the negative impact of equity work and the 

ReCenter professional development. 

 

Ms. Ricketts asked Mr. Ristas follow-up questions about his sources, his understanding of texts and explained the 

similarities and differences in their opinions. 

 

Mr. Furie explained that equity allows all to succeed, while equality gives everyone the same advantages.  He said he 

is very proud of what the district has done. 

 

Mr. Ristas read excerpts from the ReCenter training and said that it is about grouping students together, not teaching 

them as individuals. 

 

Ms. Khan said that teachers always teach the individual and that Mr. Ristas is making the assumption that black 

students are the ones who need help.  She also stated that his interpretation of the material is not what it actually is. 

 

At this point in the discussion, Mr. Ristas used the term "colored" when speaking about black students. 

 

Mr. Lockhart expressed that he wished a conversation about affirmative action could be had.  He stated that the 

intensity that certain members speak to Dr. Hill is offensive.  He said some of what has been said is hurtful. 

 24



 6 

Mr. Panos said that this has not been an attack on Dr. Hill, but on the general trend in education. 

 

Mr. Lockhart said that the democrats are being attacked. 

 

Mr. Panos asked if he did offend the democrats and offered Mr. Lockhart his written materials to review.  Mr. 

Lockhart declined the offer. 

 

Ms. Taylor stated her outrage at the huge monologues.  She said that students, teachers, and administration were 

watching.  She said when the term "colored students" was used, to never disrespect her by saying that.  She asked how, 

in 2021, he could use that word.  She demanded an apology for the use of the term.   

 

Mr. Ristas responded to Ms. Taylor and said to "get over it." 

 

Mr. Lockhart requested a general consensus to move to the next agenda item.  There was agreement and this agenda 

item was closed. 

  

8. Superintendent's Report 

 

Dr. Hill began by saying he did not feel attacked by anyone during agenda item 7e.  He respected other opinions and 

thanked Mr. Ristas for pointing out that Dr. Cooke was in charge of the ReCenter training.  He stated that out of 45 

professional development sessions, only one dealt with equity.  He is committed to doing the work. 

 

He stated that this year's convocation was held at Dunkin' Donuts Park in Hartford on Tuesday, August 23.  Danielle 

Batchelder was the emcee for the event.  Remarks were made by Deputy Mayor Joseph McAuliffe, Town Manager 

Peter Souza, Educator of the Year Dr. Monica Brase and Paraeducator of the Year Michael Kastner, as well as 

himself.  

 

Dr. Hill thanked the Windsor Chamber of Commerce and the Windsor Historical Society for hosting the new teacher's 

luncheon.  This year's luncheon was moved to WHS due to torrential rain.  

 

He thanked community partners Talcott Resolution on Griffin Road North and Accu-Time Systems on International 

Drive, as well as WHS alumni organized by Carol Engelmann,  who donated back-to-school supplies for the 2021-

2022 school year.  The supplies have been distributed by the Office of Family and Community Partnerships. 

 

Mr. Lockhart left the meeting from 9:58 PM to 10:00 PM. 

 

Staff and students returned on Monday, August 30, 2021.  Cabinet and district leaders visited all the schools on the 

first day.  He took the opportunity to speak with students to express his expectation for greater effort to accomplish 

greater academic success. 

 

Regarding transportation, the district has received communication from DATTCO regarding the bus driver shortage.  

This is a nationwide problem and in an effort to combat this shortage, DATTCO has tried recruiting through many 

channels, including recruitment bonuses.  There currently are enough drivers to handle scheduled pick-up and drop-off 

of students.  The Commissioner of Education has been in contact with superintendents regarding the shortage and 

efforts to remedy this. 

 

Dr. Hill emphasized the domino effect of traffic congestion at the schools not allowing the buses to depart quickly for 

additional runs.  He recommended, specifically for Sage Park Middle School, that students be dropped off on the 

sidewalk to arrive at school, when parents are already waiting for several minutes to even enter the parking lot. 

 

He wanted to make sure that Ms. Canter (who spoke during audience to visitors) knew that he heard her concerns over 

transportation communication. He reviewed the process that is in place, although not foolproof, to inform families 

when a bus is late.  He also spoke about a new system in place called Apptegy which allows for timely 

communication, because it was rolled out as school began, it does require fine tuning. 

 

He asked STEM Director Dr. Noha Abdel-Hady and Arts and Humanities Director Bonnie Fineman speak about the 

Summer Enrichment Program.   Dr. Abdel-Hady gave an overview of the program and the classes offered.  Ms. 

Fineman read reviews from parents and staff members regarding their opinion of the program.  There was an 

overwhelmingly positive response with requests for it to be held next summer as well.  Windsor Public Schools’ 

students from grades (incoming) first through senior year were offered classes which were funded with the ESSER I 

grant. 25



 7 

 

Dr. Hill invited the public to a reception on Tuesday, October 19 at 6:00 PM to say goodbye to BOE members who are 

leaving. 

 

a. School Opening Comments 

 

This agenda item was covered by Dr. Hill during agenda item 8.   

 

Motion to table the remaining agenda items. This motion, made by Mr. Ronald Eleveld, Withdrawn. 

Motion to extend the meeting to 11:00 PM. This motion, made by Mr. David Furie and seconded by Mr. Paul Panos, 

Passed. 

 

Mr. Ronald Eleveld: No, Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 8, No: 1 

 

During the motion to extend the meeting to 11:00 PM, Mr. Eleveld asked for his statement to be recorded. 

 

Mr. Eleveld said "I no longer vote to extend meetings.  If we can't get the work done in 3.5 hours, we're headed to 4 

hours, and maybe you guys like to stay here all night, but we do need to be a little realistic about it." 

  

b. Staffing Update for Opening of 2021-2022 School Year 

 

Ms. Batchelder said that the district held, mostly virtual, recruiting fairs.  The majority of first interviews were 

conducted virtually with the second being in person.  The new teacher orientation included building substitutes, 

behavior technicians, and SEL staff.  She reviewed staffing statistics. 

 

c. Fiscal Year 2021 Year End Financial Report 

 

Mr. Bosch asked what the acronym SFSD means.  He also asked if it had been forecast before. 

 

Ms. Batchelder responded with School Food Service Department.  This had not previously been forecast as, due to the 

pandemic, there hadn't been incoming funds from students. 

 

Mr. Eleveld mentioned insurance coverage as well as certified/non-certified staff. 

 

Ms. Khan and Mr. Ristas left the meeting from 10:29 PM - 10:31 PM, prior to the vote. 

 

Move that the Board of Education approves the return of $550,040 to the Town with the details of the projected 

budget/category surplus' and deficits as attached. (Final amount subject to completion of the audit.). This motion, 

made by Mr. David Furie and seconded by Mr. Brian Bosch, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

9. Committee Report: 

 

The Policy Committee report was covered during agenda item 7.c.1. 

 

10. Other Matters/Announcements/Regular BOE Meetings 

 

Ms. Ricketts asked that the board act collectively together in a professional manner with respect. 

 

Mr. Bosch announced Northwest Park is celebrating it's 40th anniversary with many activities and functions.  He 

announced that Mr. Lockhart has been made Captain of the Wilson Fire Department and offered his 

congratulations. 

 

Mr. Lockhart thanked Mr. Bosch for the recognition.  He said he was speechless and humbly serves Windsor. 

 

a. Next BOE Regular Meeting is Tuesday, October 19, 2021, 7:00 PM, Town Hall, Council Chambers 26



 8 

 

1. Farewell Reception for Departing Board of Education Members on Tuesday, October 19, 2021, 6:00 PM, Town Hall, 

Council Chambers 

 

11. Audience to Visitors 

 

Gary Woodruff, 72 Tobey Avenue - Students should not be taught by the color of their skin and educators should not 

assume anything about their students.  He urged educators to meet students where they are.  He spoke about his 

family's advantages and also educational challenges. 

 

Rebecca Jacobsen, 50 Lighthouse Hill Road - presented to the board the basic percentages of the town by color for 

residents and students.  She also spoke about the difference between equality and anti-racism.   

 

Sally Grossman, 106 Niles Road - said that the use of the term "colored" by Mr. Ristas left her disgusted.  She said 

that the community heard Mr. Ristas telling them to get over it. 

 

Susan Miller, 130 Palisado Avenue - she said she supports Dr. Hill pushing ourselves to improve. 

 

At this time, Stenographer Robin Daly read the Q&A chat as follows: 

 

Merlyne, no address given - asked what is the difference between certified and non-certified staff. 

 

James Madison, no address given - asked for a link to the published curriculum as well as the PD materials on equity 

and that a link to these items be included in the minutes. 

 

Rebecca Jacobsen, 50 Lighthouse Hill Road - wrote that she could explain the definition of equity if Mr. Panos was 

still confused. 

 

Merlyne, no address given - asked in the chat when an apology could be expected from the two gentlemen. 

 

An anonymous attendee, no address given - said they found it offensive as well.  The statement was by Mr. Riskas 

(sic) when he referred to the colored, I mean Black students. 

 

12. Adjournment 

 

Motion to adjourn the meeting at 10:58 PM. This motion, made by Mr. Ronald Eleveld and seconded by Mr. Brian 

Bosch, Passed. 

 

Mr. Brian Bosch: Yes, Mr. Ronald Eleveld: Yes, Mr. David Furie: Yes, Ms. Maryam Khan: Yes, Mr. Leonard 

Lockhart: Yes, Mr. Paul Panos: Yes, Ms. Charlotte Ricketts: Yes, Mr. James Ristas: Yes, Ms. Ayana Taylor: Yes 

Yes: 9, No: 0 

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:58 PM. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ayana K. Taylor, Secretary 

Windsor Board of Education 

 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38


	Agenda
	1. Call to Order, Pledge to the Flag, Moment of Silence
	2. Recognitions/Acknowledgements
	3. Audience to Visitors
	4. Consent Agenda
	4.a. Financial Report
	4a. Financial Report

	4.b. Enrollment Report
	4b. Enrollment Report

	4.c. Food Service Report
	4c. Food Service Report

	4.d. Human Resources Report
	4d. Human Resources Report


	5. Approval of Minutes
	5.a. September 14, 2021 Policy Committee
	9.14.21 BOE Policy Committee Unapproved Minutes RD FINAL

	5.b. September 21, 2021 Regular Meeting
	9.21.2021 BOE Regular Meeting Unapproved Minutes FINAL RD


	6. Student Representative Report
	7. Board of Education
	7.a. President's Report

	8. Superintendent's Report
	8.a.  NAEYC Accreditation Update
	8a. National Assocation fo the Education of Young Children (NAEYC)

	8.b. WHS Program of Studies 2022-2023, 1st Reading
	8b. 2022-2023 Program of Studies


	9. Committee Reports
	9.a. Policy Committee

	10. Other Matters/Announcements/Regular BOE Meetings
	10.a. BOE Organizational Meeting, Monday, November 8, 2021, 6:00 PM, Town Hall, Council Chambers
	10.b. BOE Special Meeting (BOE Orientation), Monday, November 8, 2021, 6:30 PM, Town Hall, Ludlow Room
	10.c. Next BOE Regular Meeting is Tuesday, November 16, 2021, 7:00 PM, Town Hall, Council Chambers

	11. Audience to Visitors
	12. Adjournment

